OFFICIAL U.S. IMPORT AGENCIES FOR MICHELIN TIRES

Michelin tires reached the American market on a regular basis through the import agencies for French vehicles and were also available at automobile parts and supply stores as well as repair shops. To regulate their growing tire business, the French parent company developed a policy of representation through agents and official agencies, on the brink of definitively implementing production with their own factory in the United States.

1. The first representative

1903 is the year when reference is made to the first official Michelin agency in the United States, the U.S. Agency of the Michelin Tire Co. The company was legally constituted a few months later, on January 23, 1904, with a capital of $30,000 and with Norris N. Mason, J. N. Marshall, and J. J. Ackenman—all residents of New York—as founding partners, and located at 132-142 West 27th Street in New York City (fig. 4). Mason, who managed the business, was a businessman linked to the motor world and representative until 1903 of the Société Franco-Americaine d’Automobiles of Paris. After leaving Michelin in 1906, he worked importing Leon Bollée automobiles. On March 7, 1916, he founded his own company that was dedicated to the sale of automobiles: The Mason Motor Car Company.

Mason’s agency, despite being Michelin’s official representative, also had to compete with other well-established component companies, such as the import company headed by Léon Rubay since 1902, a delegation of the French automobile accessories firm J. Lacoste & Cie. from Paris. In its extensive catalog, in addition to carburetors, spark plugs, batteries and headlights, it offered three European tire brands: Samson, Continental and Michelin (figs. 1-3).

The U.S. Agency of the Michelin Tire Company opened its first office in the summer of 1903, located on East 27th Street, and it soon outgrew the premises. On January 14, 1904, the business was moved to a spacious location comprising almost 1,000 m² on the ground floor of the building between 132 and 142 West 27th Street. The facilities included the firm’s headquarters, with a large reception lounge; an exhibition and sales space; a storage warehouse for goods and accessories, with the largest volume of
imported tires in America valued at about $20,000; and a garage with repair shop, mechanized car wash area with capacity for three vehicles and a room for drivers. In March 1904 the facilities were occupied and at full capacity.\

Between March and April 1904, Eben D. Winans was appointed assistant director for the U.S. Agency of the Michelin Tire Company following a period of working as the advertising director for the Darracq Automobile Co., an American automobile import company that imported French cars. In early May, Norris Mason traveled to France to visit the Clermont factory and, presumably, to meet with the Michelin brothers. The meeting dealt with adequately preparing the space that the agency had reserved in the French pavilion at the international tradeshow, Louisiana Purchase Exposition, informally known as the Saint Louis World’s Fair. It took place between April 30 and December 1, 1904 and was an important showcase for displaying all the products produced by the French firm. The Michelin stand featured an impressive Art Nouveau wrought-iron display case created for Michelin et Cie. in their own workshops for metallic structures and blacksmithing owned at that time by André Michelin. The exhibit, which received one of the Grand Prizes from the exhibition’s jury, displayed the principal company products: the different measures for pneumatic covers and inner tubes—exhibiting them both whole and cut up into different cross-sections to show the internal tire structure—, repair kits, tools and air pumps (fig. 6).

A similar stand, perhaps the same one, was utilized in the Esposizione Internazionale dell’Industria e del Lavoro, which was held in the Italian city of Turin in 1911, displaying the technological innovations and tools that the firm offered. A large side panel listed Michelin’s production centers, with factories in Clermont-Ferrand, in London—actually a large distribution center—in Turin and in Milltown (fig. 7).

In early September 1904, Mason sold his business to G. G. McMurtry Senior and severed his ties with the Michelin company. In December of that year, the Fire Commissioner—of the New York City fire department who was responsible for fire prevention—after studying and inspecting conditions of the establishment set up by Mason on 27th Street, decided to revoke the previously granted license. The materials stored in the Michelin agency’s extensive ground floor, including automobile fuel, were an ominous potential danger to the rest of the building—on the upper floors a business employed more than 250 workers. Presumably this decision was a blow to the business after the major investment realized to equip and make headquarters adequate. This seems to account for the fact that a few weeks later, Michelin decided to transfer their business to a new agency.

2. Eben Winans and the new agencies

In the following months Eben D. Winans, assistant manager at Mason’s former agency, traveled to France to study all aspects of the tire business and upon his return—January 1, 1905—he established a new agency. The Michelin Tire American Agency, Inc. of New York (fig. 5) was established on January 10, 1905, promoted and directed by George McIntosh MacWilliam—General Director of the American Darracq Automobile Co.—and with Eben D. Winans in the position of manager. It had delegations in several cities, such as those run by A. F. McWilliams in Boston, R. H. McKinney in Philadelphia—with J. L. Kier as salesman—J. B. McTeague in Chicago, and R. H. Magoon in Cleveland.

Winans became the right-hand man of the Michelin brothers in America. He managed the French firm’s import trading activities and successfully achieved making profits. His administrative skills were not only dedicated to import trading, he was also soundly instructed to start negotiations for creating
6. OFFICIAL U.S. IMPORT AGENCIES FOR MICHELIN TIRES

an American factory.\textsuperscript{13} On January 14, 1906, he returned from his second trip to France after presumably interviewing the Michelin brothers and discussing the strategy to be followed in the upcoming months, dealing with both import distribution and implementation plans. Thus, confirming the growing rumors that were circulating amongst the motor and rubber industries in this respect, a news article published in February of that same year reported on Winans’ statements: The Michelin company disposed of $3,000,000 to invest in the construction of a factory destined to produce tires on American soil.\textsuperscript{14}

Two days after disembarking, on January 16, 1906, Winans legally established the Michelin Products Selling Company Inc. of New York, which was responsible for the exclusive importation of Michelin tires for North America (figs. 8-9).\textsuperscript{15} The founding capital was $100,000 and the partners were William F. Donovan, Percival W. Logan, and Frank P. Reilly, with Winans as the general director.\textsuperscript{16} The company was located at 31-33 West 31st Street, where it had offices, exhibition and sale rooms. The new firm acquired the exclusive rights to import tires and products manufactured in Clermont-Ferrand by Michelin et Cie.\textsuperscript{17}

In April—and as a subsidiary of the new Winans agency—the Michelin Tire Repair Works was established, with J. A. Straus as manager and with premises located at 242-244 West 41st Street. Their function was to offer official Michelin maintenance and repair services for company products utilizing the company’s own methods;\textsuperscript{18} they also had delegations in other cities.\textsuperscript{19} But at the end of the same year, due to health problems, Winans left his position as manager of the Michelin Products Selling Co. and was replaced by Edward W. Elverson, who until then had been the company’s treasurer.\textsuperscript{20}

3. The E. Lamberjack & Co. Agency

The gap that the withdrawal of Winans created, being the French parent company’s right-hand man, led to the emergence of a new import agency, E. Lamberjack & Co., Inc. (fig. 10), which acquired the Michelin Tire American Agency and the Michelin Products Selling Co. to become—without competitors—the sole import agency for Michelin.\textsuperscript{21} The business took over the facilities, material, warehouses and infrastructure of the Michelin Products Selling Co., settling in the same premises—31-33 West 31st Street in New York—and obtained the exclusive representation rights in America for the firm.\textsuperscript{22} The agency was legally registered in January 1907, providing an initial capital of $10,000, and with J. E. Lamberjack, Paul La Croix and M. G. Bernin as founding partners and S. H. Stern as director of the American agency.\textsuperscript{23}

Emile Lamberjack, born in Paris in 1869, was the importer in the United States of Italian Fiat vehicles in 1905, and from France, had administered for years the sale of Michelin tires abroad as an exclusive exporter. His experience in the sector and close relationship with the parent company in Clermont-Ferrand was conducive to the fluid transatlantic commercialization of Michelin products. Lamberjack was the director of the Societé Franco-American Automobiles in Paris, managing the business along with his brother Dominique. Both were also accustomed to participating as pilots in different automobile races. Emile Lamberjack was also in charge of the Franco-American Auto and Supply Company in Chicago, directing the distribution of Michelin products in central and western North American States. He ran the business from France and although he visited New York and Chicago several times, he had a personal representative in America, his partner Paul La Croix and S. H. Stern as the agency’s managing director.\textsuperscript{24}
Paul Louis Jacques La Croix [or Lacroix, as it is written in certain American documents] was born in Paris on February 7, 1880. He was a well-known racing driver linked to various businesses in the motor industry. He was vice president and general manager of the American automobile agency Renault et Frères in New York since its establishment in November 1906 and for several years thereafter. He was a member of the New York Motor Club and one of the promoters of the Importers’ Automobile Salon, where he held various posts in the organizing committee’s leadership positions for various editions.25 In 1912 he formed his own sales company, Paul Lacroix Automobile Company, located at the junction of Broadway with 57th Street, and later became an agent for the German car company Mercedes.26

A news item from November 1, 1906 reported:

“Mr. Paul Lacroix, of Paris, France, a personal representative of the Michelin brothers, is now visiting the United States.” 27

Lacroix had landed in New York on September 1, 1906 from the English port of Liverpool, after having interviewed the Michelin brothers in reference to the creation of the new agency which he founded six months later with Emile Lamberjack.

4. The promised land

The American market constituted an opportunity that not only Michelin was interested in. Most of the major British and European tire industries insistently devoted their attention to this end, using automotive trade shows and exhibitions to strengthen their presence or make themselves known, and establishing agreements with import and representation agencies. For example, we can see that in those years firms such as the Italian Pirelli or the German Continental—and also smaller brands like the French Samson and Pneu L’Electrique or the Austrian Harburg—regularly advertised in press specializing in the motor sector.

The first European company in the tire sector to take on the U.S. automotive market was Britain’s Dunlop, backed by its patents on tubular or single-tube technology. It was established in 1893, with the creation of the American Dunlop Tire Co. based in Belleville, New Jersey. In 1900, the Rubber Goods Mfg. Co. purchased the business and disengaged it from the British parent company, incorporating the entity into the Hartford Rubber Works of Connecticut, which was in charge of manufacturing Dunlop tires and continued utilizing the British brand name (figs. 11-12). In 1905, the firm was acquired by the United States Rubber Co. as part of a business package. The original company, British Dunlop, would return in the twenties, regaining its rights over the brand through the Dunlop Tire & Rubber Co. and building a large production facility in Buffalo, New York.

The German firm Continental had been represented in the United States since 1903 by the Continental Caoutchouc Company. Five years later it began its own production, reaching an agreement with a local industry, an initiative that was soon cut short. The local company, in 1911 and without German participation, became part of a business conglomerate run by the United States Tire Co. (figs. 13-14).

The Parisian company Société Anonyme des Pneumatiques Cuir Samson was established around 1902, in order to commercialize covers or casing protectors designed to extend the life of tires and give them a firm grip that smooth treads did not provide. These protectors—made of leather and small metal studs on the tire tread—were attached to the tire, completely surrounding it. This technology was offered by various companies and was an effective solution for the fragility of pneumatic tires in those early years.
In fact, Eben D. Winans’ American import agency, the Michelin Product Selling Co., offered Michelin tires protected by Samson covers for use in fall and winter months when driving was complicated by wet motorways or roads covered with mud or snow. The invention also developed into the French Patent Number 336.654, issued on November 13, 1903, which dealt with strips of leather reinforced with metal trim that could be glued to the tread—a smooth model or simply worn-down—of any tire.

In 1904 the American subsidiary, Samson Leather Tire Co., was established at 12 West 33rd Street in New York with A. E. Gallien as its director—replaced in 1906 by Count G. de Pontac—J. B. McKeague as its agent in Chicago and James Coggeswall in Boston. Only a few years later, after having initial success, the business went bankrupt and closed, probably due to the product’s obsolescence given the appearance and standardization of pneumatic tires that incorporated anti-skid soles (figs. 17-20).

Société Industrielle des Téléphones, a Parisian company that manufactured electrical wiring and various articles and accessories for bicycles and motor vehicles such as inner tubes and solid rubber tires, started producing their L’Électric car tire in 1901. In 1904 they already had delegations in Lyon, Marseille, Bordeaux and Nice, which serviced shops of the major French cities. In 1906 they ventured into the American market, creating an import agency, The Pneu L’Electric Company. It was initially located at number 1591—and later transferred to 1610—on Broadway in New York City, and was responsible for publicizing and commercializing the product (figs. 15-16).

The American agency Pirelli & Co., headed by Emil Grossman, was established in 1907. Its headquarters were located at the premises of number 296 Broadway and part of the business, in addition to supplying tires for Italian imported cars fitted with original Pirelli tires, constituted the division of rubber insulated electrical wiring, widely used in automotive components (fig. 22).

On December 16, 1906, the Harburg Tire Company was founded with the purpose of introducing and commercializing for the first time in the United States the tires produced by Vereinigte Gummiwaaren-Fabriken, Harburg-Wien, a German-Austrian company whose origins date back to Vienna in 1856. The American headquarters, run by R.L. Kingston, were located in a large building on West 58th Street in New York that housed offices, a showroom, and an assembly and repair shop with specialized personnel. Six months later, they had eight associate distributors, in cities such as Boston, Chicago, Philadelphia, and Washington (fig. 21).

The case of Englebert was similar to that of many other European companies. They had a token presence that was often limited to International Automobile Trade Shows and Events held in the United States, a way of making themselves known and establishing commercial ties with local businesses. In 1908, the tires produced by O. Englebert Fils & Co. in Belgium were distributed in Great Britain through Englebert Tires Ltd. and in the United States through the representation of William Standford Company in Philadelphia. On September 13, 1912, Englebert Tire Co. was founded, with a capital stock of $ 100,000 contributed by three local partners. The company was directed by E. W. Elverson with an office on Broadway in New York City, with the mission of expanding the network of representatives and achieving a good position in the competitive American market (figs. 23-24).
5. The arrival of Michelin

After 1906 events unfolded quickly. The final objective of André and Édouard Michelin was to establish a subsidiary in American land with their own factory—a rumor that had already been circulating in the sector since 1905. They aimed at having a more direct means of controlling the commercialization of tires and articles produced in the new facilities.

The different official agencies that operated between 1904 and 1907 to import and distribute products manufactured in Clermont-Ferrand were short lived and constituted a period of transition towards the established goal. A news story appearing in *The Horseless Age* magazine during the first quarter of 1908—citing information published in the French press—explained that the company Michelin et Cie. paid 2,100,000 francs to Emile Lamberjack for regaining control of marketing rights in the United States as well as for its accumulated stock of tires.\(^{33}\)

In November 1906, a French delegation from the Michelin factory in Clermont-Ferrand composed of V. Lespinas, G. Lespinas and G. Ogier visited the United States, “(…) for the purpose of studying the tire industry and business.”\(^{34}\) On February 9, 1907 Édouard Michelin disembarked at the port of New York, and announced the establishment of a factory in America.\(^{35}\) This statement of intent was expressed publicly during a dinner organized in his honor and held on Wednesday, March 20 at the premises of Café des Beaux Arts—at the junction of Sixth Avenue and 40th Street in New York\(^{36}\)—with various guests that included Paul Lacroix, director of the Renault Frères delegation, its advertising director and a group of prominent French engineers:

> “The French concern has decided to establish an American factory in view of the increasing number of sales [imports] of Michelin tires here despite the fact that we are required to pay a heavy duty [for customs]. Last year our American agents, E. Lamberjack & Co., sold over 16,000 tires, and contracts for over 20,000 tires have been made for the present year. Our French and American factories will compete, and this competition will be very useful to the progress of tires. I am rather at a loss to say which one will overcome the other in popularity, but I think that French ingenuity and American brains will prove a great success.”\(^{37}\)

A press release from the firm published in December of that year speaks of the turnover generated by Michelin French tires to date, which included tires produced for export. The total number of automobile tires manufactured between 1896 and the end of June 1907 was estimated at 1,180,830, which translated into 107,348 tires per year, sufficient to annually equip 26,837 cars over those 11 years.\(^{38}\)

On March 12, 1907 the Michelin Tire Co., the company that would later run the American Michelin factory, was legally established. The startup capital provided was $3,000,000 and the founding partners consisted of John P. Murray from Jersey City and Lorenzo Semple and James E. Hopkins, both from New York.\(^{39}\) The position of President was evidently held by Édouard Michelin and the Vice President was a man who was a well-trusted colleague, A. Fountaine, from the Clermont-Ferrand factory. Several Michelin full-page advertisements published in the most important press of the automotive sector reported the situation and intentions of the firm with respect to the North American market\(^{40}\) (fig. 30). Negotiations for the future location of the factory soon began, and they seemed to be banking on the acquisition of one of the active industries from the sector.
6. The Milltown Company

The International A. & V. Tire Co. of Milltown, New Jersey, was one of the major firms in the tire industry, as demonstrated by its constant presence alongside leading brands exhibited at various annual automobile shows. The company’s importance is also verified by the publicity and attention they were given by technical publications such as *The India Rubber World* (fig. 25). According to Litchfield (1954), in the years prior to Michelin’s acquisition of the firm, the automobile tire market was divided as follows: BF Goodrich and Diamond dominated 55% of the business between the two; U.S. Rubber held an important 30% ; International Vehicle & Tire Company, 7%; Fisk Rubber Company of Chicopee Falls, controlled 5% of the market; Goodyear, with 1.5%, closed the list of industries whose percentages were worth taking into account.

The solidness of International Automobile & Vehicle Tire Co.—they were not known to have financial difficulties—and its fully operational infrastructures attracted the attention of Michelin. Obtaining an operative factory also meant not having to start from scratch, and to make sure that the chosen site and its environment were conducive to the rubber industry (availability and access to raw materials, labor, communications, etc.). In 1906, the International A. & V. Tire Co. employed 300 people.

In a previous step, the exclusive rights of the product and tire business that were being manufactured by International A. & V. Tire Co. (figs. 26-29)—in 1907 they used the name of International Rubber Co. of Milltown—were transferred to a new corporation, the International Rubber Co. of Boston. This was directed by Lawrence H. Fiske, who had been working for three years as representative of the company for the eastern areas. In March 1907, negotiations were consolidated and Michelin acquired the properties and infrastructure of the Milltown industrial complex.

The factory would become operational in a few months, producing the first “American” Michelin tires. Consequently, it meant the closure of shipments from Clermont-Ferrand and the dismantling of their import agencies. E. Lamberjack & Co. ceased its commercial activity at the beginning of June. In that same month, the new Michelin tire repair center was inaugurated in New York, The Michelin Tire Repair Works, located at 242 West 41st Street and run by F. D. Bable, expert in tire manufacturing and repair.

Emile Lamberjack traveled to the United States at the end of August 1907. Part of the fourteen days he spent on American soil was dedicated to managing matters related to the continuity of his business as a previous supplier of Michelin products. One has to bear in mind that, as he told reporters before embarking on September 12 for Paris, the Milltown factory would be producing goods within one month and afterwards, the first tires could be commercialized after one more month.
6. OFFICIAL U.S. IMPORT AGENCIES FOR MICHELIN TIRES

Notes

1. "New Incorporations," *The India Rubber World*, February 1, 1904, p. 175; as was also reported in *The Horseless Age*, February 3, 1904, p. 144.


3. Mason held the position of manager, as shown in several advertisements for Leon Bollée automobiles in press; for example, the advertising module published in the New York newspaper *The Sun* on January 18, 1906.


6. As explained by two short notes in *The Horseless Age*, April 6 and 27, 1904.


10. The historic records of passenger who landed on Ellis Island tell us of two voyages registered under the name of Eben D. Winans. The first record describes Winans’ return to New York on January 1, 1905, embarking at the English port of Southampton aboard the ship Philadelphia, probably after his trip to Clermont-Ferrand. In the second case, we are told that he returned from France one year later on January 14, 1906 as a passenger of the La Savoie embarking from the port of Le Havre, on the northwest coast of France. The American Family Immigration History Center (AFIHC), division of The Statue of Liberty-Ellis Island Foundation (SOLEIF). *Ellis Island Archives, Immigrant Arrival Records*. “List or Manifest of Alien Passengers for the U.S. Immigration Officer at Port Arrival,” ship Philadelphia, December 31, 1904 and La Savoie, which covered the Le Havre-New York line, January 14, 1906.


13. “It is rumored that in response to the demand in the United States for these tires, a large factory will soon be erected here to make them under the Michelin process (…) Mr. Winans has in charge the financing of the American company which will manufacture Michelin tires (…) up to the present
time he is understood to have sold more Michelin tires in the United States than anybody else.”
“The Head of the House of Michelin,” The India Rubber World, June 1, 1905, p. 303.
15. The Winans agency also created a distribution network in different states. In this regard, it is likely
that the Michelin Tire and Supply Co., established in the state of Illinois on July 20, 1906, was one of
these distribution centers. On March 9, 1908—a year in which Winans no longer had the Michelin
license—the Michelin Tire and Supply Co. of Illinois changed its name to that of Dan J. Canary
Company (a company that closed definitively on July 16, 1921). Information based on documents
of the “Annual Report 1908, Office of the Secretary of State,” provided by the Department of
16. The India Rubber World, March 1, 1906, p. 204.
17. The India Rubber World, July 1, 1906, p. 337.
19. The India Rubber World, November 1, 1906, p. 60.
20. As explained: “Mr. E. D. Winans has resigned his position as general manager of the Michelin
Products Selling Co., Inc. (…) Mr. Winans is in ill health and will go to California for a rest,”
The India Rubber World, November 1, 1906, p. 60. The voluntary certificate of dissolution for the
Michelin Products Selling Co. was processed in May 1907. The India Rubber World, June, 1907.
21. As explained in a news article that reports on Lamberjack’s visit to the Chicago League Union,
22. The India Rubber World makes a brief mention of rumors circulating in the sector that E. Winans
had obtained $200,000 for the sale of his company and the Michelin tire commercialization rights,
paid for by the Michelin Tire Company. The India Rubber World, May 1908.
24. Although each one had their own representation agencies, both were partners in different busi-
nesses. Lacroix acted as the representative of Lamberjack, who remained in France and traveled
personally only on a few occasions. We find Paul Lacroix (traveler number 21, aged 23) and E.
Lamberjack (number 23, aged 34) in the 1903 Ellis Island passenger register, namely amongst those
coming from the French port of Le Havre on the ship La Savoy, which landed on August 14. The
records tell us that while Lamberjack crossed the Atlantic three times (1903, 1904 and 1906), Paul
Lacroix was much more active and did so on at least eight occasions between 1903 and 111. In all
registers he appears as a citizen who resides in Paris, except for that of 1911, the last recorded voy-
age (the Ellis Island immigration files spanned from 1892 to 1924). Then his residence is recorded
in New York. He probably established his home in this city, upon marrying on February 18, 1912—
after divorcing his first wife— Mrs. Susie F. Bailey, also of New York.
27. The India Rubber World, November 1, 1906, p. 60.
28. “The Samson leather tire,” The India Rubber World, October 1, 1904, p. 17; “Personal trade brevi-
ties,” The Automobile, April 12, 1906, p. 656; “Samson Leather Tire company bankrupt,” The India
Rubber World, April 1, 1910, p. 247. This company should not be confused with the Samson Tire
and Rubber Company, founded in 1918 by Adolph Schleicher with a factory in Los Angeles,
California, which was purchased by U.S. Rubber in 1931.
Horseless Age, June 3, 1908.
30. Brief press releases in November and December 1906 and March 1907 numbers of The India Rubber World; The Automobile, March 26 and May 21, 1908.


32. “Tires and tire makers,” The India Rubber World, September 1, 1908, p. 412; The India Rubber World, October 1, 1912.

33. The Horseless Age, March 25, 1908, p. 362.

34. The India Rubber World, November 1, 1906, p. 61.


36. The event was attended by George B. Van Cleve, director of the advertising agency with the same name, Leon Rubay and S. H. Stern, director of Lamberjack & Co., as explained in the news item “Plans for the Michelin American factory” The Automobile, March 28, 1907.

37. According to news published in 1907 in the New York newspapers The Sun (which also names “Edward” Michelin), March 24, p. 61, and The New York Times (this time as “Édouard” Michelin), March 22. A report was also published on the subject in “Plans for the Michelin American factory,” The Automobile, March 28.

38. The India Rubber World, December 1, 1907, p. 91. The same text is reproduced in an advertisement published in an unidentified American magazine in 1908 with slight variations: “Michelin created the first automobile tire in 1895. Since then until last September, we have manufactured 1,180,830 tires, enough to fit 295,000 cars (…) .”

39. “New incorporations,” The India Rubber World, April 1, 1907, p. 224. John P. Murray, James E. Hopkins and Lorenzo Semple—who were founding partners of the Michelin Tire Co.—were members of the major New York law firm Coudert Brothers, at least according to what was published in a professional list edited in 1915. This law office, created by the three children of a French immigrant, was closely related to certain immigrant communities and represented at the turn of the century the interests of French subsidiary companies such as Renault. It seems plausible that André and Édouard Michelin entrusted them with their legal affairs upon establishing the Michelin Tire Company (1907) and that the names of Murray, Hopkins and Semple were simply utilized as a legality, without them actually being founding partners nor providing any capital.

40. For example: The Horseless Age, July 24, 1907, p. 9; Motor, August 1907, p. 24; Cycle and Automobile Trade Journal, August 1907, p. 327.

41. The International A. & V. Tire Co. was legally established on April 15, 1899. That same month, operating from its offices in New York, it absorbed the Newton Rubber Works Company of Newton Upper Falls, Massachusetts. The Newton entity was a major tire manufacturer for wagons, bicycles and motor vehicles as well as all kinds of rubber parts for mechanical components. The International A. & V. Tire Co also acquired the industrial plant of another leading company, the LC Chase & Co. of Boston, located in the town of Chelsea. In 1902 they acquired the Milltown factory. The firm was present at the third Annual Automobile Show, organized by the Automobile Club of America and the National Association of Automobile Manufacturers at Madison Square Garden, January 17-24, 1903, showing its range of pneumatic and solid rubber wheels produced in Milltown.
In the official catalog of the exhibition 11 tire companies were represented: Hartford Rubber Works, Firestone Tire & Rubber, Fisk Rubber, Metallic Rubber Tire, BF Goodrich, Consolidated Rubber Tire, G & J Tire, Diamond Rubber, Goodyear Tire & Rubber, Standard Anti-Friction Equipment and, of course, International Automobile and Vehicle Tire. In the following editions of the Automobile Show—the fourth during the week of January 16 to 23, 1904; the fifth during the week of January 14 to 21, 1905; the sixth during the week of January 13 to 20, 1906 and the seventh during the week of December 1 to 8, 1906—all 11 continued to participate. The Annual Statistics of Manufactures, 1899 (fourteenth report). Boston, Massachusetts: Bureau of Statistics of Labor, 1900, p. 69.

42. For example, a large advertisement for The International A & V Tire occupies a half-page cover of The India Rubber World magazine, in its June 1, 1906 issue.

43. Paul W. Litchfield, a former Goodyear manager, joined the firm L. C. Chase in 1897, working as a manager for their factories in Reading and Chelsea, Massachusetts. After a year, he left the company for another job offer. In 1899, he returned to L. C. Chase in Chelsea, at that moment in the process of being merged with what turned into a major enterprise led by the International A. & V. Tire Company. The following year, he joined the then modest Goodyear Tire and Rubber Co., as assistant superintendent of production. Litchfield (1954), pp. 85-86.


45. At the seventh edition of the New York Automobile Show in December 1906, the International Rubber Co. from Milltown, NJ and New York’s Michelin Products Selling Co, Inc. were among the participating exhibitors. The India Rubber World, January 1, 1907, p. 108.

46. The India Rubber World, August 1, 1907, p. 371.

47. “The Michelin American factory,” The India Rubber World, July 1, 1907.

48. A news story published on June 1, 1906 explains that the Michelin Products Selling Co., whose rights were acquired by E. Lamberjack & Co., was dissolved legally and voluntarily. “Trade new notes,” India Rubber World, June 1, 1907, p. 291. On the other hand, a publicity campaign for Michelin tires run by E. Lamberjack & Co., appeared in the press between May and June 1907. In the New York newspaper The Sun, the campaign began on March 5th and ended, after 19 insertions, on June 2nd (presumably because that was the time the Lamberjack agency disappeared). The next Michelin advertisement published in this medium was on September 30th, this time run by the Michelin Tire Co.

49. “Trade news notes,” The India Rubber World, June 1, 1907, p. 292.

50. “Emile Lamberjack returns to Paris,” The Automobile, September 12, 1907.

Bibliography


Article compiled by Sue Foster on the website of Middlesex County Genealogy.
www.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~njmiddle/Towns/milltown/oberzell.htm

LITCHFIELD, Paul Weeks. *Industrial Voyage. My Life as an Industrial Lieutenant.*

LURIE, Maxine N.; MAPPEN, Marc. *Encyclopedia of New Jersey.*

MERCIER, M.; GILLET, F. *Cent ans d’industrie: histoire anecdotique de la maison Michelin.*
Unpublished manuscript. Michelin Archives, Clermont-Ferrand.

Works Progress Administration. *History of Milltown.*
Document edited from the original, written by typewriter and presented to the Milltown Historical Society by Linda Matlack Butch.
BUSINESS ON WHEELS.

The Frenchman Léon Rubay began his career in the United States as a sales agent for imported automobile components and often times his portrait would appear in his advertisements. In 1915 he founded his own company, the Léon Rubay Co., dedicated to the design of automobile bodies and worked with several of the most important firms in the sector, such as White Motor Co., Franklin, Templar, Marmon, Locomobile, Packard, Pierce Arrow, Cadillac, Chandler, Cole, Rickenbacker, Duesenberg and Moon, among others.

1. Illustration of an advertisement by Léon Rubay in the monthly magazine Motor, February 1905.
2. Advertisement in Motor, April 1905.
3. Advertisement in The Automobile, July 9, 1904.
FROM MASON TO WINANS. The names of the directors of Michelin’s representatives on American soil were conveniently emphasized in press advertisements.

4. Advertising module in Motor Age, 1903. 5. Full page advertisement in Motor, June 1905.
EXPOSITION. This large wrought iron display cabinet with Art Noveau decoration served to show visitors at the Saint Louis Fair the range of products made in France by Michelin et Cie. and imported by the Michelin Tire American Agency.

The same showcase—or a new one built with the same design—was used seven years later to display the renovated Michelin products in the 1911 Esposizione internazionale dell’Industria e del Lavoro in Turin.

Page extracted from the corporate magazine of the Italian subsidiary Il Pneumatico Michelin, June-July 1911.
THE SECOND AGENCY. When establishing the new Winans agency—Michelin Products Selling—in 1906, advertisements were published in motor industry magazines to announce the change of the official representative. The motto that accompanies some of these advertisements, “It’s considered ‘CHIC’ to have Michelin Tires on your cars, even in France” reflects the reputation of French Michelin tires for American customers of that era.

ANNOUNCEMENT

E. Lamberjack & Company, Inc.

Are now the sole Agents for the United States for

Michelin Tires

having taken over all the rights, effects and goodwill of the former Michelin Products Selling Company, Inc. of 31-33 West 31st Street, and the Michelin Tire Agency, 6 West 29th Street, New York City, and now stand alone as the direct representatives of MICHELIN ET CIE, of France, and as such are enabled to protect the American purchasers of MICHELIN TIRES, and to import directly from the parent house of which this is a branch.

This arrangement permits of material reductions in the price of MICHELIN TIRES, which will be announced shortly.

Address all orders and make all checks payable, in the future, to

E. LAMBERJACK & COMPANY, INC.
31-33 West Thirty-first Street :: :: New York City
TELEPHONE: 5560 MADISON SQUARE

10. Full page advertisement of the new agency Lamberjack & Company, Inc. in Motor magazine, February, 1907.
ASSIMILATED. On this page, two samples of advertisements for Hartford Rubber Works Co., which manufactured automobile tires based on the original Dunlop patent, retaining the name of the British brand for certain models.

Continental constantly maintained their advertising presence in specialized American magazines of the sector, always highlighting the company’s German origin. In the above image, the two-page advertisement of Continental’s U.S. subsidiary flaunts the productive power of the parent company’s factories in Hannover, Germany, with more than 4,500 employees. It also details that in 1907 it had already deployed delegations in several major U.S. cities: Boston, Buffalo, Chicago, Cleveland, Detroit, Los Angeles, New York, Philadelphia, San Francisco and St. Louis, as well as Toronto, Canada. Hundreds of retailers were served from these centers. On the left, an American advertisement reproduces Continental’s iconic corporate banner—the raised arm holding a tire—, constantly utilized and updated over the years for their campaigns in Germany, Great Britain and the rest of European markets.

STREET SHOWCASE.
The Société Industrielle de Thélatephones (S.I.T.) began its activity producing electrical and telegraph cables covered with an insulating rubber tube. But soon, as the above illustration shows, it expanded its catalog to a multitude of mechanical and electrical items, many of which were essential components of motor vehicles: headlamps, batteries, various tools, inflation pumps, valves, etc. Among them, the company highlighted its L’Electric tire brand that can be seen represented in posters—which were actually printed and preserved as different collections—glued to the wall. On the right, the image of a wheel fitted with the L’Electric brand tire portrayed incorporating the product name, which was also used as an emblem in the import subsidiary’s American advertising.

15. French promotional postcard for products of the Société Industrielle de Thélatephones, 1906.
FRENCH LESSONS. Part of the advertising developed by Samson’s American subsidiary, the Samson Leather Tire Company, took advantage of original French posters and designs, reproducing them and even preserving messages written in their original language.

NATIONAL HALLMARK. In the first years after the turn of the century, the label “made in Europe” highlighted the intrinsic quality of products imported from the Old Continent. This was evidenced in advertisements for different representation agencies, as seen in the two examples included on this page. In the image below, we see this in the case of Pirelli, with the statement: “‘Improved Construction’ Italian Tire.”

IMPORTANT. In the advertisements for the American delegation of the Belgian firm Englebert, the motto “Made in Belgium” was always portrayed as a guarantee of quality. Using this base, the firm unhesitatingly launched affirmations such as that seen in the example below, “(…) it averages nearly 40% higher than the best domestic tyres (…).”

FRONT COVER. The image here provides proof that The International Automobile & Vehicle Tire Company was one of the top-ranking tire companies. It depicts an advertising insertion in one of the most prestigious—and appreciated by companies who advertise and publicists for its impact—places in a magazine: its cover. In this case the accomplishment was double, since it dealt with the monthly publication *The India Rubber World*, the main publication and reference for the rubber industrial sector. The advertisement’s image depicts aspects of the industrial complex in Milltown and its surroundings in those years.

25. Front cover advertisement in the specialized monthly magazine *The India Rubber World*, June 1, 1906.
6. OFFICIAL U.S. IMPORT AGENCIES FOR MICHELIN TIRES

FROM MASSACHUSETTS TO NEW JERSEY.

The International Automobile and Vehicle Tire Company was established in 1899 acquiring several businesses in the State of Massachusetts and its corresponding factories. In June 1902, they bought the facilities of Christopher Meyer’s former factory in Milltown, which, after their adaptation, were ready to begin production in August of that same year. This page shows two examples of pre-Milltown advertising material: a testimonial advertisement and a catalog of products and prices offered by the company.

27. Cover of catalog and price list for products manufactured by the International Automobile & Vehicle Tire Co., effective May 1, 1900.
THE MILLTOWN FOX. Fox Brand was one of the classic brands produced by The International Automobile and Vehicle Tire Company at its Upper Newton Falls facility in Massachusetts—through a licensing agreement for the technology developed by G & J Tire Co.—, which was also manufactured at the new headquarters in Milltown.

ANNOUNCEMENT

1. In order to save to the American Automobile trade the 85 per cent. duty on imported MICHELIN TIRES, Messieurs Michelin, of Clermont-Ferrand, France, have incorporated in New Jersey under the name of the Michelin Tire Company.

2. Our factory at Milltown, which is being rapidly pushed to completion, will be the largest automobile tire plant in America, and is being perfectly equipped with new and modern machinery throughout, which will give us unequalled facilities for prompt deliveries at all seasons of the year. In addition, branch stocks will be established in many important cities.

3. The MICHELIN TIRES made in America will duplicate those made in France in every minute detail of fabric, rubber, secret processes and workmanship.

4. The quality of MICHELIN TIRES needs no comment here, for as you know they have helped win every automobile contest for many years past. The only nine cars which finished in the Grand Prix were all equipped with MICHELIN TIRES; the nine successful contestants in the Targa-Floria were all fitted with MICHELIN TIRES; the winners in the German Emperor’s Cup Race were also equipped with MICHELIN TIRES. The repetition of this splendid showing is most significant to thoughtful purchasers. The quality which made these successes possible will be repeated in every particular in the tires made at Milltown, N. J.

5. We wish to talk with you about your tire requirements for 1908, and we shall endeavor to make our proposition interesting to you in price as well as quality. We can begin deliveries as early as you desire.

6. We extend our thanks to those who have used imported MICHELIN TIRES, and trust, in view of the lower prices made possible by saving the 85 per cent. import duty, to number among our good friends and customers a constantly increasing number of the American automobile trade for 1908.

Édouard Michelin
President.

MICHELIN TIRE COMPANY
FACTORY AND GENERAL OFFICE
MILLTOWN, N.J., U.S.A.

Factories Founded in
CLERMONT-FERRAND, FRANCE
1889
LONDON, ENGLAND
1903
TURIN, ITALY
1907
MILLTOWN, N.J., U.S.A.

30. Full page advertisement for the new Michelin Tire Company with a text signed by Édouard Michelin, published in the trade journal The Horseless Age, July 24, 1907.